
WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP  
COMMITTEE MEETING 

        March 15, 2022 
 

7:00 PM Regular Meeting, Courtroom 
 

1. Call Regular Meeting to Order  

2. Requirements of the Sunshine Law (This meeting was advertised in the Burlington County 
Times on January 10, 2022 and electronic notice was given pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:39-1.5).  

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Moment of Silence  

5. Roll Call 

6. PRESENTATION: Swearing in Police Lieutenant Ryan Bieri 

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 a.  Resolution No. 03-15-2022: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor, Township   
      Committee and Support Staff to Meet in Private Session and Authorizing the Exclusion      
      of the Public From that Portion of the Meeting Dealing with Specific Issues Requiring 
      Non-Public Discussions – Personnel. No official action will be taken. 

8. Approval of Minutes  

a. March 1, 2022 - Regular Meeting, Executive Session and Workshop Minutes 

9. Open Meeting to Public Comment on Agenda Items Only  

10. Monthly Reports: Westampton Township Police Department Report, Westampton 
Township Fire/EMS Report, Westampton Township Public Works Department Report. 

11. ORDINANCES: 

a. 2-2022 Calendar Year 2022 Ordinance to Exceed the Municipal Budget Appropriation 
Limits and to Establish a CAP Bank. 
(First Reading, motion and second required) 

b. 3-2022 Ordinance of the Township of Westampton: Bond Ordinance Authorizing the 
Acquisition of Various Capital Improvements in and for the Township of Westampton, 
County of Burlington, New Jersey; Appropriating the Sum of $1,256,150.  
(First Reading, motion and second required)  

c. 4-2022 Ordinance of the Township of Westampton Authorizing to Grant a Deed of 
Easement to the County of Burlington for the Preservation of Property Located at Block 
203, Lot4, within the Township of Westampton.  
(First Reading, motion and second required) 

 



12. RESOLUTIONS:  
 
 a.  49-22 Payment of Vouchers – this resolution approves the payment of bills 

through 03/15/2022.  
 
b.  50-22 Resolution Authorizing the 2022 Municipal Budget to be Read by Title Only 
 
c.  51-22 Resolution Authorizing the Local Examination of the 2022 Municipal Budget 
 
d.  52-22 Resolution to Introduce the 2022 Municipal Budget 
 

 
13. CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTIONS CONSENT AGENDA - RESOLUTIONS NOTE: 

Consent Agenda items are considered to be routine and will be enacted with a single 
motion; any items requiring expenditure are supported by a Certification of Availability of 
funds; any items requiring discussion will be removed from the Consent Agenda. 

a. 53-22 Resolution Establishing Promotional Criteria for Sergeant for Westampton 
Township Police Department 

b. 54-22 Resolution Appointing Police Lieutenant  

c. 55-22 Resolution Refunding Overpaid Taxes  

14. OPM Mailbox & Correspondence:  None 

15. Open Meeting for Public Comment - Please remember to state your name and  
                        address for the record. 
 

16. Dates to Remember: Next Scheduled Meeting April 5, 2022, Budget Hearing April 19, 
 2022, Law Enforcement Career Day March 31st 12PM-2:30PM @Rowan Campus Mount 
 Laurel; Recreation Department Easter Event April 7th. 

17.  Committee Liaison Reports/Comments – Township Committee members. 

18. Adjournment  

 
Please note: 
  
During the first public comment period, any resident or taxpayer of Westampton is welcome to comment on any 
governmental item of concern limited to the ordinances and resolutions being considered this evening. The second 
public comment period is open to any item of concern. A total of thirty (30) minutes has been allocated for each of the 
public comment periods. This time may be extended by the Committee.  

If you wish to be heard, come to the podium and give your name and address to the Clerk for the record. The amount of 
discussion of any single speaker will be limited to three (3) minutes. Large groups are urged to select someone to 
represent them. No speaker shall engage in any personally offensive, derogatory or abusive remarks. The Mayor shall 
immediately call to order any speaker who violates this provision. An officer of the WTPD may remove any disruptive 
person at the Mayor’s discretion.   

Public Comment is an opportunity for the public to present their views—both positive and negative. It is not a question-
and-answer period. Neither the Mayor nor Committee Members will engage in a back-and-forth exchange so speakers 
are encouraged to present all their views. The Mayor as well as any Committee Member may respond to any comment 
after such speaker is finished. The Mayor may refer the speaker to the Township Administrator, Department Head or 
any Committee Member to respond in writing. 



RESOLUTION No. 03-15-2022
EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC FROM PUBLIC MEETING 

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 

WHEREAS, Section 7.a of Chapter 231 Public Law 1975, otherwise known as the “Open 
Public Meetings Act” states that except as provided by Section 7.b, all meetings of a public 
body, such as the Township Committee, shall be open to the public at all times; and 

WHEREAS, Section 7.b provides that the Township Committee may exclude the public 
only from the portion of a meeting at which the Township Committee discusses certain subjects 
which are listed in said Section; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Committee desires to discuss certain subject(s) which are 
listed in said section and desires to exclude the public from the portion of the meeting at which 
the Township Committee will discuss said subject(s); and 

WHEREAS, Section 8 of Chapter 231, Public Law 1975 states that no public body shall 
exclude the public from any meeting to discuss any matter described in Section 7.b until the 
public body shall, at a meeting to which the public shall be admitted, first adopt a Resolution 
making certain statements with respect to the subject(s) to be discussed. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township of 
Westampton in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey, as follows: 

1. That the Township hereby declares that the general nature of the subject(s) to be

discussed by the Township Committee in closed session is as follows:

Personnel

2. That the Township Committee hereby declares that its discussion of the aforementioned
subject(s) may be made public at a time when the Township Attorney advises the
Township Committee that the disclosure of the discussion will not detrimentally affect
any right, interest or duty of the Township or any other entity with respect to said
discussion.

3. That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons hereby declares that the
public is excluded from the portion of the meeting during which the above discussion
shall take place and hereby directs the Township Clerk to take the appropriate action to
effectuate the terms of this Resolution.



I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 
of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 
held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 
Jersey 08060 on March 15, 2022. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley 
Carr 

DeSilva
Mayor Henley 

Mungo 



 

 WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE MEETING 
7:00 PM Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
March 1, 2022 

 
The meeting was called to order and opened at 7:01 by Mayor Sandy Henley.  
Requirements of the Sunshine Law were read. This meeting was advertised in the 
Burlington County Times on January 10, 2022. This meeting was held in person in the 
Westampton Township Municipal Building Courtroom. The flag was saluted and there 
was a moment of silence.   
 
Roll Call: 
  Committeewoman Burkley   Present 
  Committeeman Carr     Present 
  Committeeman DeSilva   Present  
  Mayor Henley      Present 
  Committeewoman Mungo   Absent  
   
                                 
Acting Clerk/Administrator Wendy Gibson, Township Solicitor Robert Wright, Chief of 
Police Stephen Ent, Fire/EMS Chief Craig Farnsworth and Deputy Clerk were also 
present. 
 
Approval of Minutes of the 02/15/22 Regular meeting and 02/15/22 Workshop; motion to 
approve by Mr. Carr; second by Mr. DeSilva. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Public Comments on Agenda Items – Mr. Gary Berberian 138 Winstead Drive wanted 
to note that item 15(b), Resolution 44-22 may have had a clerical error within the body of 
the Resolution, regarding the actual amounts listed. 
 
All in favor to close public comment. 
 
Monthly Reports: Tax Collector January 2022 Report. 
 
Ordinances: 
a.  1-2022 Ordinance of the Township of Westampton to Accept the Dedication of that 
Portion of Hancock Lane Located in BLOCK 902, LOT 1 (second reading, motion & 
second required, then open to public). 
 
No public comment was made, all in favor to close. 
 
Motion to adopt Ordinance 1-22 was made by Mr. DeSilva; second by Mr. Carr. Motion 
carried 4-0. 
 
 
 



 

Resolutions: 
 

a. 42-22 Payment of Vouchers – this resolution approves the payment of bills 
through 03/01/22. 
 

Motion to approve Resolution 42-22 made by Ms. Burkley; seconded by Mr. DeSilva. 
Motion Carried 4-0. 
 
Consent Agenda Resolutions 
 

a. 43-22 Resolution Appointing a Full Time Patrolman 
b. 44-22 Resolution Approving the Deferral of Local School Taxes 
c. 45-22 Resolution Approving Sale of iPad and iPhone 
d. 46-22 Resolution Authorizing Shared Service Agreement - MACCS Program 
e. 47-22 Resolution Authorizing Shared Service Agreement – Tax Collector 
f. 48-22 Resolution Authorizing Contracts with Certain Approved State Contract 

Vendors 
 

Ms. Burkley requested to discuss Resolution 47-22, stating she would prefer to have a 
full-time person in the Tax office.  
 
Mr. DeSilva asked how long the term was, to which Ms. Gibson replied December 31st.  
 
Mr. Carr replied that it was a temporary solution, and he wanted to make sure we found 
the right person and to provide adequate time. 
 
Mayor Henley noted that the Township was motivated to get the work done, and that he 
was confident the agreement will work. 
 
Motion to pull resolution 47-22 and approve Resolution numbers 43-22 through 46-22 
and 48-22 made by Mr. Carr; second by Mr. DeSilva. Motion Carried 4-0. 
 
Motion to approve Resolution 47-22 made by Mr. Carr; second by Mr. DeSilva. Motion 
Carried 3-1. 
 
OPM Mailbox & Correspondence:   
 
None.  
 
Open to Public Comment: 
 
None.  
 
All in favor to close public comment. 
 
 



 

Dates to Remember:   
 
Dates to Remember: Next Scheduled Meeting March 1, 2021 Budget Workshop@ 6PM,   
Regular meeting @ 7:00PM, Law Enforcement Career Day March 31st 12PM-2:30PM 
@Rowan Campus Mount Laurel; Recreation Department Easter Event April 7th. 

                                                                                                                                   
Committee Liaison Reports/Comments:   

Committeewoman Burkley wanted to recognize a former employee who passed away, 
Ms. Shirley Venitsky. She was retired three times and worked for the Township for 30 
years in multiple offices. She was known for collecting articles for historical purposes. 
Ms. Burkley requested to write a proclamation honoring her. 
 
Ms. Burkley also noted that the schools cannot have an art fair this year due to a faculty 
member’s maternity leave, and the essay question for Black History Month was chosen. 
She requested assistance with reading and scoring.  
 
Committeeman Carr wanted to acknowledge the Timbuctoo History event.  
 
Mayor Henley wanted to acknowledge the fires in town, noting that the money spent 
toward the Emergency Services team is well spent. The team proves what they can do, 
and as a resident, he’s extremely proud. He thanked everyone for everything they do. 
      
Motion to adjourn the public meeting and approve Resolution number 2-15-2022 to enter 
into Executive Session was made by Mr. DeSilva; seconded by Mr. Carr. All in favor. 
Meeting adjourned 7:25 PM.  Motion Carried 4-0. 
 
Executive Session 
 
Resolution No. 3-1-2022: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor, Township Committee and 
Support Staff to Meet in Private Session and Authorizing the Exclusion of the Public 
From that Portion of the Meeting Dealing with Specific Issues Requiring Non-Public 
Discussions – Attorney Client Privilege – Personnel.  
 
Executive Session officially adjourned at 7:43PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Municipal Clerk      
 



 

 WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP  
 

2022 Workshop Session Minutes 
 

March 1, 2022 
 

This meeting was advertised in the Burlington County Times on January 16, 
2022, and electronic notice was given pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:39:1.5.  The 
meeting was called to order at 6:03PM by Mayor Henley in the Municipal Building 
Courtroom, and conducted in person in Meeting Room 107.  

 
Present: Ms. Burkley, Mr. Carr, Mr. DeSilva, Solicitor Robert Wright, 
Administrator/Acting Clerk Wendy Gibson, Deputy Clerk Monique Wylie, Chief of 
Police Stephen Ent, Fire/EMS Chief Craig Farnsworth. 
Absent:  Ms. Mungo. 
 
The topic of discussion was the 2022 budget.  Administrator Wendy Gibson 
began the discussion about the anticipated revenues for the 2022 budget cycle. 
She indicated that with the reduced rate of certain revenues, including municipal 
occupancy taxes and a loss of ratable values, there will need to be a tax increase 
of about 6%.  
 
The Committee was unable to give guidance on the expenditures, as they 
wanted more time to review some of the line items.  
 
The meeting was opened to the public for comment.  
 
Gary Berberian, 138 Winstead Drive, requested there to be data the public could 
review, and noted that he felt the Committee was being fiscally prudent. He also 
requested a list of Township-owned property. Chief Stephen Ent advised he has 
a list he can share. 
Mr. Berberian also inquired about where the Township receives bonding. Solicitor 
Robert Wright confirmed that the bonds are sold in the bond market, to which 
anyone can enter. 
 
All in favor to close public comment. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:46PM to a short break and then to the regular 
meeting, held in the Municipal Courtroom.   
   
Wendy Gibson, Acting Municipal Clerk 



 

 WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE MEETING 
7:00 PM Executive Session Meeting Minutes 

 
March 1, 2022 

 
 
The meeting was called to order and opened at 7:25 by Mayor Sandy Henley.  
Requirements of the Sunshine Law were read. This meeting was advertised in 
the Burlington County Times on January 10, 2022. This meeting was held in 
person in the Westampton Township Municipal Building Courtroom. The flag was 
saluted and there was a moment of silence.   
 
Roll Call: 
  Committeewoman Burkley   Present 
  Committeeman Carr   Present 
  Committeeman DeSilva   Present  
  Mayor Henley    Present 
  Committeewoman Mungo   Absent  
                                   
Acting Clerk/Administrator Wendy Gibson and Robert Wright, Township Solicitor 
were also present.   
 
Executive Session  
 
Resolution No. 03-01-2022: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor, Township 
Committee and Support Staff to Meet in Private Session and Authorizing the 
Exclusion of the Public From that Portion of the Meeting Dealing with Specific 
Issues Requiring Non-Public Discussions – Personnel. Motion to enter Executive 
Session made by Mr. DeSilva, seconded by Ms. Burkley.  
 
The Committee, Township Attorney and Township Administrator discussed 
matters relating to Personnel, as generalized.  
 
The Committee, Township Attorney and Township Administrator adjourned to a 
closed courtroom meeting at 7:43 PM. All in favor to end the Executive Session.  
 
   
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Municipal Clerk      
 



















 

 

February 28, 2022 

To: Mayor & Committee 

From: Public Works 

Subject: March 2022 Department Report 

 

Roads 

Brush:  Crews had a very light month with brush picking up a total of 14.26 tons of brush 

rotation took 3 days to complete.  

Street Repairs:  We have started our pothole repair rotation in the town. DPW is 

working in a timely manner to get the potholes filled in though out the town. During the 

windstorm that occurred on 2-18 a tree came down on the fence in Rolling Hills that is 

adjacent to Westampton Courts, a small crew of guys removed the tree and fixed the 

fence.  Lastly, DPW was assisted By Nelson Tree service to remove a tree on Lambert Dr. 

at no cost to the Twp.   

Recycling:  A normal flow of requests for new cans and lid repairs continue, DPW is 

currently out of new cans, new cans are on order through the county just waiting for 

them to come in.  We are fine with lid replacements and will continue to service those 

requests in a timely fashion.    

Leaf Collection:  DPW crews have found a window of opportunity in the weather to 

wrap up leaf cleanup on Township owned properties.  Spring Cleanup will start 

approximately the second week in April.  All info for that will be on the Township 

website.     

Grass: Cutting is wrapped up for the season.  

 



Snow:   The month of February brought minor nuisance storms to the town, and no 

plowable events this month. On 2-5-2022 DPW were brought in to do after hours salting 

for icy roads, the rest of the minor occurrences happened during daylight operations 

and handled without problem. 

Facilities 

Municipal Building:  DPW did an excellent job painting the front office, copy room, and 

tax office on the second floor of the Municipal building.  Westampton Township has 

been talking with Burlington County Special Services about having a work training 

program. Last week was the first week for this. Special Services started last week 

bringing one person over to assist with cleaning the building.  Everything went well on 

both ends and are looking forward to continuing this relationship.   

Sport complex\Parks:  Water was turned back on in the concession stand in anticipation 

of maintance and repairs needing to be completed for the upcoming season.  A hose bib 

was found to be leaking so DPW replaced it.  One of the sinks in the bathroom was also 

found to be coming off the wall, a new bracket was purchased and the sink was 

reinstalled. We are also working on fence maintance on the sports complex grounds, a 

lot of the ties holding the fences up have come loose or are missing. DPW is working to 

re attach those areas. 

DPW Building:  Retro fitting of all the lighting in the DPW buildings has been completed.  

This will be a nice cost saver for the Township in maintance, materials, and the electric 

bill for our dept.  Road maintance took place on the road going to the leaf pit, access 

back to the area was starting to be an issue.  

Rec. Center:   Front door has broken again. DPW is in the process of getting the 

materials needed to repair the door.   

Firehouse:   N/A 

Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 

Public Works:   

 Snow plow lights on 65, 58, and 67 retro fitted to LED light sets. 

#66 Def tank heater 

Pm’s for Mower season 

Other minor repairs. 



Police: 

Other minor repairs 

Fire Dept.: 

N\A 

Recreation: 

N/A 

Personnel Training:   N/A 

 



CALENDAR YEAR 2022 
ORDINANCE TO EXCEED THE MUNICIPAL BUDGET APPROPRIATION 

LIMITS  
AND TO ESTABLISH A CAP BANK 

 (N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.14) 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2-2022 
 
 WHEREAS, the Local Government Cap Law, N.J.S. 40A: 4-45.1 et seq., 

provides that in the preparation of its annual budget, a municipality shall limit any 

increase in said budget to 2.5% unless authorized by ordinance to increase it to 3.5% over 

the previous year’s final appropriations, subject to certain exceptions; and, 

 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.15a provides that a municipality may, when 

authorized by ordinance, appropriate the difference between the amount of its actual final 

appropriation and the 3.5% percentage rate as an exception to its final appropriations in 

either of the next two succeeding years; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Committee of the Township of Westampton in the County of 

Burlington finds it advisable and necessary to increase its CY 2022 budget by up to 3.5% 

over the previous year’s final appropriations, in the interest of promoting the health, 

safety and welfare of the citizens; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Committee hereby determines that a 1.0% increase in the budget 

for said year, amounting to $107,951.34 in excess of the increase in final appropriations 

otherwise permitted by the Local Government Cap Law, is advisable and necessary; and, 

 WHEREAS the Committee hereby determines that any amount authorized 

hereinabove that is not appropriated as part of the final budget shall be retained as an 

exception to final appropriation in either of the next two succeeding years. 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the Committee of the Township 

of Westampton, in the County of Burlington, a majority of the full authorized 

membership of this governing body affirmatively concurring, that, in the CY 2022 budget 

year, the final appropriations of the Township of Westampton shall, in accordance with 

this ordinance and N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.14, be increased by 3.5%, amounting to 

$377,829.70, and that the CY 2022 municipal budget for the Township of Westampton be 

approved and adopted in accordance with this ordinance; and,  



 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that any that any amount authorized 

hereinabove that is not appropriated as part of the final budget shall be retained as an 

exception to final appropriation in either of the next two succeeding years; and, 

 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that a certified copy of this ordinance as 

introduced be filed with the Director of the Division of Local Government Services 

within 5 days of introduction; and,  

 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that a certified copy of this ordinance upon 

adoption, with the recorded vote included thereon, be filed with said Director within 5 

days after such adoption. 

 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect 

immediately upon final passage and publication as required by law. 

Roll Call Vote -Upon Introduction – 3/15/2022 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

DeSilva       
Mayor Henley       

Mungo       
 
 

Roll Call Vote – Upon Adoption – 4/5/2022 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

DeSilva       
Mayor Henley       

Mungo       
 

Adopted upon final reading on 
April 5, 2022 

 
 

_________________________________ 
Mayor Sandy Henley 

 
 

       Attest 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 



 TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON, NEW JERSEY 
 
 ORDINANCE 3-2022 

      
 

  BOND ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION 
OF VARIOUS CAPITAL EQUIPMENT AND COMPLETION 
OF VARIOUS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS IN AND FOR 
THE TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON, COUNTY OF 
BURLINGTON, NEW JERSEY; APPROPRIATING THE SUM 
OF $1,256,150 THEREFOR; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE 
OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OR BOND 
ANTICIPATION NOTES OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 
WESTAMPTON, COUNTY OF BURLINGTON, NEW 
JERSEY IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 
UP TO $1,193,340; MAKING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS 
AND COVENANTS; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
RELATED ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
FOREGOING 

      
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Township Committee of the Township of Westampton, County 
of Burlington, New Jersey (not less than two-thirds of all the members thereof affirmatively 
concurring), pursuant to the provisions of the Local Bond Law, Chapter 169 of the Laws of 1960 of 
the State of New Jersey, as amended and supplemented ("Local Bond Law"), as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The purposes described in Section 7 hereof are hereby authorized as general 
improvements to be made or acquired by the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, New 
Jersey ("Township"). 
 
 Section 2. It is hereby found, determined and declared as follows: 
 
  (a) the estimated amount to be raised by the Township from all sources for the 
purposes stated in Section 7 hereof is $1,256,150; 
 
  (b) the estimated amount of bonds or bond anticipation notes to be issued for the 
purposes stated in Section 7 hereof is $1,193,340; and 
 
  (c) a down payment in the amount of $62,810 for the purposes stated in Section 
7 hereof is currently available in accordance with the requirements of Section 11 of the Local Bond 
Law, N.J.S.A. 40A:2-11. 
 
 Section 3. The sum of $1,193,340, to be raised by the issuance of bonds or bond 
anticipation notes, together with the sum of $62,810, which amount represents the required down 
payment, are hereby appropriated for the purposes stated in this bond ordinance ("Bond Ordinance"). 
 
 Section 4. The issuance of negotiable bonds of the Township in an amount not to exceed 
$1,193,340 to finance the costs of the purposes described in Section 7 hereof is hereby authorized.  
Said bonds shall be sold in accordance with the requirements of the Local Bond Law. 
 
 Section 5. In order to temporarily finance the purposes described in Section 7 hereof, 



 

the issuance of bond anticipation notes of the Township in an amount not to exceed $1,193,340 is 
hereby authorized.  Pursuant to the Local Bond Law, the Chief Financial Officer is hereby authorized 
to sell part or all of the bond anticipation notes from time to time at public or private sale and to 
deliver the same to the purchasers thereof upon receipt of payment of the purchase price plus accrued 
interest from their date to delivery thereof.  The Chief Financial Officer is hereby directed to report 
in writing to the governing body at the meeting next succeeding the date when any sale or delivery 
of the bond anticipation notes pursuant to this Bond Ordinance is made.  Such report must include 
the amount, the description, the interest rate and the maturity schedule of the bond anticipation notes 
sold, the price obtained and the name of the purchaser. 
 
 Section 6. The amount of the proceeds of the obligations authorized by this Bond 
Ordinance which may be used for the payment of interest on such obligations, accounting, 
engineering, legal fees and other items as provided in Section 20 of the Local Bond Law, N.J.S.A. 
40A:2-20, shall not exceed the sum of $251,230. 
 
 Section 7. The improvements hereby authorized and the purposes for which said 
obligations are to be issued; the estimated costs of each said purpose; the amount of down payment 
for each said purpose; the maximum amount obligations to be issued for each said purpose and the 
period of usefulness of each said purpose within the limitations of the Local Bond Law are as 
follows: 
 

  
Purpose/Improvement 

Estimated 
Total Cost 

Down 
Payment 

Amount of 
Obligations 

Period of 
Usefulness 

A. Acquisition of Various Pieces of Equipment for the 
Township Police Department including, but not limited to, 
Police Interceptor Vehicle with Camera System and a 
Livescans Fingerprint Machine, together with the 
acquisition of all materials and equipment and completion 
of all work necessary therefor or related thereto 

$69,650 $3,485 $66,165 5 years 

B. Acquisition of Various Pieces of Equipment for the 
Township Public Works Department including, but not 
limited to, a Compressor and Sweeper, together with the 
acquisition of all materials and equipment and completion 
of all work necessary therefor or related thereto 

128,000 6,400 121,600 15 years 

C. Various Improvements of Municipal Buildings for the 
Township Public Works Department including, but not 
limited to, Flooring, together with the acquisition of all 
materials and equipment and completion of all work 
necessary therefor or related thereto 

30,000 1,500 28,500 15 years 

D. Acquisition of Various Pieces of Heavy Equipment for the 
Township Public Works Department including, but not 
limited to, a Dump Truck, together with the acquisition of 
all materials and equipment and completion of all work 
necessary therefor or related thereto 

200,000 10,000 190,000 10 years 

E. Acquisition of Various Pieces of Equipment for Township 
Department of Emergency Services including, but not 
limited to, Fire and Emergency Medical Services 
Equipment and Radio Maintenance Equipment, together 
with the acquisition of all materials and equipment and 
completion of all work necessary therefor or related 
thereto    

42,500 2,125 40,375 5 years 



 

  
Purpose/Improvement 

Estimated 
Total Cost 

Down 
Payment 

Amount of 
Obligations 

Period of 
Usefulness 

F. Reconstruction and/or Resurfacing Various Roadways in 
the Township including, together with the acquisition of 
all materials and equipment and completion of all work 
necessary therefor or related thereto 

786,000 39,300 746,700 10 years 

 Total  $1,256,150 $62,810 $1,193,340  
 
 Section 8.   The average period of useful life of the several purposes for the financing of 
which this Bond Ordinance authorizes the issuance of bonds or bond anticipation notes, taking into 
consideration the respective amounts of bonds or bond anticipation notes authorized for said several 
purposes, is not less than 10.18 years. 
 
 Section 9. Grants or other monies received from any governmental entity, if any, will be 
applied to the payment of, or repayment of obligations issued to finance, the costs of the purposes 
described in Section 7 above. 
 
 Section 10. The supplemental debt statement provided for in Section 10 of the Local 
Bond Law, N.J.S.A. 40A:2-10, was duly filed in the office of the Clerk prior to the passage of this 
Bond Ordinance on first reading and a complete executed duplicate original thereof has been filed 
in the Office of the Director of the Division of Local Government Services in the Department of 
Community Affairs of the State of New Jersey.  The supplemental debt statement shows that the 
gross debt of the Township, as defined in Section 43 of the Local Bond Law, N.J.S.A. 40A:2-43, is 
increased by this Bond Ordinance by $1,193,340 and that the obligations authorized by this Bond 
Ordinance will be within all debt limitations prescribed by said Local Bond Law.  
 
 Section 11. The full faith and credit of the Township are irrevocably pledged to the 
punctual payment of the principal of and interest on the bonds or bond anticipation notes authorized 
by this Bond Ordinance, and to the extent payment is not otherwise provided, the Township shall 
levy ad valorem taxes on all taxable real property without limitation as to rate or amount for the 
payment thereof. 
 
 Section 12. The Capital Budget is hereby amended to conform with the provisions of this 
Bond Ordinance to the extent of any inconsistency therewith, and the resolution promulgated by the 
Local Finance Board showing full detail of the amended Capital Budget and Capital Program as 
approved by the Director of the Division of Local Government Services, is on file with the Clerk 
and available for inspection. 
 
 Section 13. The Township hereby declares its intent to reimburse itself from the proceeds 
of the bonds or bond anticipation notes authorized by this Bond Ordinance pursuant to Income Tax 
Regulation Section 1.150-2(e), promulgated under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 
("Code"), for "original expenditures", as defined in Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2(c)(2), 
made by the Township prior to the issuance of such bonds or bond anticipation notes. 
 
 Section 14. The Township hereby covenants as follows: 
 
  (a) it shall take all actions necessary to ensure that the interest paid on the bonds 
or bond anticipation notes authorized by the Bond Ordinance is exempt from the gross income of 
the owners thereof for federal income taxation purposes, and will not become a specific item of tax 
preference pursuant to Section 57(a)(5) of the Code; 
 



 

  (b) it will not make any use of the proceeds of the bonds or bond anticipation 
notes or do or suffer any other action that would cause the bonds or bond anticipation notes to be 
"arbitrage bonds" as such term is defined in Section 148(a) of the Code and the Regulations 
promulgated thereunder; 
 
  (c) it shall calculate or cause to be calculated and pay, when due, the rebatable 
arbitrage with respect to the "gross proceeds" (as such term is used in Section 148(f) of the Code) of 
the bonds or bond anticipation notes;  
 
  (d) it shall timely file with the Internal Revenue Service such information report 
or reports as may be required by Sections 148(f) and 149(e) of the Code; and 
 
  (e) it shall take no action that would cause the bonds or bond anticipation notes 
to be "federally guaranteed" within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code. 
 
 Section 15. The improvements authorized hereby are not current expenses and are 
improvements that the Township may lawfully make.  No part of the cost of the improvements 
authorized hereby has been or shall be specially assessed on any property specially benefited thereby. 
 
 Section 16. All ordinances, or parts of ordinances, inconsistent herewith are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such inconsistency. 
 
 Section 17. In accordance with the Local Bond Law, this Bond Ordinance shall take 
effect twenty (20) days after the first publication thereof after final passage. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon 
final passage and publication as required by law. 

Roll Call Vote -Upon Introduction – 3/15/2022 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

DeSilva       
Mayor Henley       

Mungo       
 
 

Roll Call Vote – Upon Adoption – 4/5/2022 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

DeSilva       
Mayor Henley       

Mungo       
 

Adopted upon final reading on 
April 5, 2022 

 
_________________________________ 

Mayor Sandy Henley 
       Attest 

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO. 4-2022 
 
ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON, IN THE 

COUNTY OF BURLINGTON, NEW JERSEY TO GRANT A DEED OF 
EASEMENT TO THE COUNTY OF BURLINGTON FOR THE PRESERVATION 
OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT BLOCK 203, LOT 4, WITHIN THE TOWNSHIP 

OF WESTAMPTON. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Township of Westampton (hereafter referred to as “Township”) is the 

sole and exclusive owner of certain land located in Westampton Township, Burlington County, 

State of New Jersey, known as the Sharpless Property, which land contains approximately 8.68 

acres and is designated on the official Township tax map of Westampton Township as Block 

203, Lot 4, (hereafter referred to as the "Property"); and 

 WHEREAS, protection, preservation and conservation of open space is a priority for 

Burlington County Board of Commissioners’ (hereafter referred to as “County”) local open 

space and recreation program; and 

 WHEREAS, the County and the Township wish to preserve and conserve the Property 

and ensure that the Property will be available for appropriate recreational purposes; and 

 WHEREAS, by  Resolution #2021-00248 adopted on May 12, 2021, the County 

authorized execution of a cost-share  agreement with the Township through which, the County  

agreed to participate in the Township’s acquisition of the Property; and  

 WHEREAS, by adoption of Resolution No. 113-21 on September 21, 2021, the 

Township authorized execution of the cost-share agreement through which it agreed to convey a 

recordable deed of easement on the Property in exchange for the County’s cost share; and  

 WHEREAS, the County’s cost share for acquisition of the Property will be $202,500.00, 

representing a 25 per cent contribution towards the Certified Market Value of $810,000.00, as 

determined by the State Green Acres Program;  

 WHEREAS, the Easement attached hereto is entered into in accordance with the New 

Jersey Conservation and Historic Preservation Restriction Act (N.J.S.13:8B-1 et seq.) and shall 

be binding upon the Township and its successors and assigns and upon the County, its successors 

and assigns. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF 

THE TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON as follows: 

 

 Section 1. Recitals.  The recitals are fully incorporated herein. 



 

 Section 2.   Granting of Deed of Easement.  The Township is hereby authorized to 

grant A Deed of Easement to the Burlington County for the preservation and conservation of the 

property located known as Block 203, Lot 4 on the official tax map of the Township of 

Westampton commonly known as the Sharpless Property, and   

 

 Section 3. Execution.  The Mayor of the Township of Westampton, in the County of 

Burlington is hereby authorized and directed, to execute on behalf of the Township any documents 

necessary to effectuate the granting of the Deed of Easement attached hereto. 

 

 Section 4. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect in accordance law. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect immediately 
upon final passage and publication as required by law. 

Roll Call Vote -Upon Introduction – 3/15/2022 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

DeSilva       
Mayor Henley       

Mungo       
 
 

Roll Call Vote – Upon Adoption – 4/5/2022 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

DeSilva       
Mayor Henley       

Mungo       
 

Adopted upon final reading on 
April 5, 2022 

 
 

_________________________________ 
Mayor Sandy Henley 

 
       Attest 

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 



 1 

        Prepared by: 
         
               
        _____________________________ 
        Anthony T. Drollas, Jr., Esq. 
        Attorney for Grantee 
 
 

DEED OF EASEMENT 
 
 

THIS DEED OF EASEMENT (hereinafter "Easement") made and  
 

entered into this ____ day of __________, 2022, between the 

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON, a municipal corporation as authorized 

under the laws of the State of New Jersey, 710 Rancocas Road, 

Westampton, New Jersey 08060 ("Grantor" or "Township"), and THE 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF BURLINGTON, with offices 

at 49 Rancocas Road, P.O. Box 6000, Mount Holly, NJ 08060, 

("Grantee" or "Board")    

RECITAL: 

 
 WHEREAS, the Grantor is a body corporate and politic  
 
of the State of New Jersey, part of whose statutory rights 
 
include preserving, protecting, and conserving open space; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantor is the sole and exclusive owner of 

certain land located in Westampton Township, Burlington County, 

State of New Jersey, known as the Sharpless Property, which land 

contains approximately 8.68 acres and is designated on the 

official Township tax map of Westampton Township as Block 203, 

Lot 4, which is more fully described in Schedule A attached 

hereto (hereafter referred to as the "Property"); and 

 WHEREAS, protection, preservation and conservation of open 

space is a priority for the County's local open space and 

recreation program; and 



 2 

 WHEREAS, the Board  and  the Township wish to preserve and 

conserve the Property and ensure that the Property will be 

available for appropriate recreational purposes; and 

 WHEREAS, by  Resolution #2021-00248 adopted on May 12, 

2021, the Board authorized execution of a cost-share  agreement 

with the Township through which , the Board  agreed to 

participate in the Township’s acquisition of the Property; and  

 WHEREAS, by adoption of Resolution No. 113-21 on September 

21, 2021, the Township authorized execution of the cost-share 

agreement through which it agreed to convey a recordable deed of 

easement on the Property in exchange for the Board’s cost share; 

and  

 WHEREAS, the Board’s cost share for acquisition of the 

Property will be $202,500.00, representing a 25 per cent 

contribution towards the Certified Market Value of $810,000.00, 

as determined by the State Green Acres Program;  

 WHEREAS, the cost-share agreement authorized the Board and 

the Township to enter into this Deed Of Easement;   

and 

 WHEREAS, this Easement is entered into in accordance with 

the New Jersey Conservation and Historic Preservation 

Restriction Act (N.J.S.13:8B-1 et seq.) and shall be binding 

upon the Grantor and its successors and assigns and upon the 

Grantee, its successors and assigns. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of $202,500.00 

(TWO HUNDRED AND TWO THOUSAND AND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS), the 

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and of the mutual 

covenants, terms, conditions and restrictions contained herein, 



 3 

the Grantor does hereby convey to the Grantee, an easement in 

perpetuity, pursuant to the laws of New Jersey, for the 

exclusive purpose of assuring that the Property will be 

conserved and maintained forever for outdoor recreation and/or 

conservation purposes and that uses of the Property that are 

inconsistent with these outdoor recreation and conservation 

purposes will be prevented or corrected. 

TERMS: 

1.  Grantor, for and in consideration of Grantee’s 

payment used for the acquisition of the Easement, and pursuant 

to the New Jersey Conservation Restriction and Historic 

Preservation Restriction Act, N.J.S.A. 13:8B-1 through 13:8B-9 

("Conservation Restriction Act"), hereby transfers, assigns, and 

grants to Grantee, its successors, and its assigns, 

a.  a restriction on the Property for the purpose of 

restricting its use to outdoor recreation and/or 

conservation purposes; and 

b.  all development rights, except as specifically 

reserved to Grantor in this Deed of Easement, which are now or 

hereafter allocated to, implied in, reserved to, or inherent in 

the Property ("Development Rights").  Grantee shall not use, 

convey, transfer, or assign the Development Rights, and assigns 

to Grantor the concurrent right to enforce this restriction on 

the use of the Development Rights.  The provisions of this Deed 

of Easement shall run with title to the Property and shall 

encumber the Property. 

 2.  It is the purpose of this Deed of Easement to ensure: 

a.  that the Property will be retained forever not only 



 4 

for outdoor recreational purposes, but to also 

protect the Property from future development and to 

preserve the scenic and open space, the forested 

character, and natural resource values, its flora 

and fauna habitat, all herein deemed conservation 

purposes; 

b.  that the Property will be used only for outdoor 

recreation and/or conservation purposes, as defined, 

in the Open Space Preservation Bond Act of 1989, L. 

1989, c. 183, in the Green Acres, Clean Water, 

Farmland and Historic Preservation Bond Act of 1992, 

L. 1992, c. 88 (collectively, "Bond Act"), the 

Garden State Historic Preservation Trust Act, 

N.J.S.A. 13:8C-3 et. seq., and in any regulations 

promulgated pursuant to the authority of the Bond 

Act ("Regulations"), now codified in N.J.A.C. 7:36-

1.1 et. seq. (such purposes, collectively and 

individually, "Park Purposes"); 

c.  that development or other rights in or appurtenant 

to the Property will not be transferred to, or used 

for the benefit of, any other property; 

d.  that the Property will not be used as open space 

set aside for or appurtenant to any other property 

or construction project pursuant to any local 

development ordinance; 

e.  that the Property will be open and accessible for 

public use and enjoyment for outdoor recreation 

and/or conservation purposes, and that access by the 



 5 

general public to enjoy the Property for outdoor 

recreational activities shall be as provided, thus 

enabling the general public to enjoy the open space 

character, forested character, natural resource 

values, flora and fauna habitat, in conjunction with 

outdoor recreation and conservation purposes; and 

f.  that any use of the Property contrary to the 

outdoor recreation and/or conservation purposes of 

set forth herein will be prevented. 

3. Purpose.  It is the purpose of this Easement to 

assure that the Property will be retained for outdoor recreation 

and/or conservation purposes as heretofore expressed forever to 

prevent any use of the Property that will impair or interfere 

with these uses. 

4. Prohibited Acts.  Any activity on or use of the 

public access areas or Property inconsistent with the purpose of 

this Easement is prohibited. 

5. Rights of Grantee.  To accomplish the outdoor 

recreation and/or conservation purposes of this Easement the 

following rights are conveyed to the Grantee for the purpose of 

assuring compliance with this Deed of Easement: 

a. Enforcement.  Grantee has the right to preserve 

and protect the outdoor recreation and/or conservation purposes 

of the Property. 

In the event of any violation of the terms and 

conditions of this Deed of Easement, Grantee may institute any 

proceedings to enforce these terms and conditions including the 

institution of suit to enjoin such violations and to require 



 6 

restoration of the Premises to its prior condition.  Grantee 

does not waive or forfeit the right to take any other legal 

action necessary to insure compliance with the terms, 

conditions, and purpose of this Deed of Easement by a prior 

failure to act. 

b. Inspection.  Grantee and their agents shall be 

permitted access to, and to enter upon, the Property at all 

times for the purpose of assuring compliance with this Deed of 

Easement. 

c. Signage.  Grantee shall be responsible for 

providing appropriate signage which identifies Grantee as a 

contributor towards the outdoor recreation and conservation 

preservation of said Property.  Grantee shall only be 

responsible for providing such sign identifying Grantee as a 

contributor towards this preservation effort.  Grantee shall be 

responsible for construction, erection, maintenance and other 

costs associated with placement of this sign only.  Grantee will 

consult with Owner and Grantor as to the location of said sign 

so the placement of the sign will not interfere with the use of 

the property. 

6. Responsibilities of Grantor and Grantee not 

affected.  Other than as specified herein, this Easement is not 

intended to impose any legal or other responsibility on the 

Grantee, or in any way to affect any existing obligations of the 

Grantor as owner of the Property except where Grantor has agreed 

to the same.  This shall apply to: 

a. Taxes.  Grantee shall have no responsibility for 

payment of any taxes or assessments levied against the Property. 



 7 

b.  Upkeep and Maintenance.  Grantor shall continue 

to be solely responsible for the upkeep and maintenance of the 

Property, except where Grantor has agreed to the same. 

c.  Liability and Indemnification.  Grantor shall 

hold harmless, indemnify and defend Grantee and its members, 

directors, officers, employees, agents, and contractors, and 

their successors and assigns from and against all liabilities, 

penalties, costs, losses, damages, expenses or claims, 

including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys fees arising 

from or in any way connected with injury to or the death of any 

person or physical damage to any property resulting from any 

negligent act, omission condition or other matter related to or 

occurring on or about the Property, as created by Grantor, 

regardless of cause, unless due solely to the negligence of any 

of the indemnified parties. 

Grantee shall be responsible for losses or 

damages resulting from the Grantee’s negligent use, maintenance 

or occupancy of the Property to the extent legally liable for 

such actions by the New Jersey Tort Claims Act, N.J.S.A. 59:1-1 

et. seq. 

7. Remedies.  The Grantee shall have the right to 

prevent and correct violations of the terms of this Easement.  

Enforcement of the terms of this Easement shall be at the 

discretion of the Grantee and any failure on behalf of the 

Grantee to exercise its rights hereunder shall not be deemed or 

construed to be a waiver of the Grantee of those rights.  This 

shall be true regardless of the number of violations of the 

terms of this Easement by the Grantor that occur or the length-



 8 

of-time it remains unenforced. 

 If Grantee finds what it believes is a violation of the 

terms of this Easement, it may without limitation as to other 

available legal recourse, at its discretion take any of the 

following actions: 

a. Notice of Violation; Corrective Action.  If 

Grantee determines that a violation of the terms of this 

Easement has occurred or is threatened, Grantee shall give 

written notice to Grantor of such violation and demand 

corrective action sufficient to cure the violation in accordance 

with a plan approved by the Grantee. 

b. Injunctive Relief.  If Grantor fails to cure the 

violation within 30 days after receipt of notice from the 

Grantee, or under circumstances where the violation cannot 

reasonably be cured within a 30 day period, fail to begin curing 

such violation, or fail to continue diligently to cure such 

violation until finally cured, Grantee may bring an action at 

law or in equity in a court of competent jurisdiction to enforce 

the terms of this Easement, to enjoin ex parte the violation by 

temporary or permanent injunction, and to require the 

restoration of the Property to the condition that existed prior 

to such injury.  Grantor acknowledges that any actual or 

threatened failure to comply or cure will cause irreparable harm 

to the Grantee and that money damages will not provide an 

adequate remedy. 

c. Damages.  Grantee shall be entitled to recover 

damages for violation of the terms of this Easement, including, 

without limitation, damages for the loss of outdoor recreation 



 9 

and conservation purposes.  Without limiting Grantors' 

liability, Grantee, in its sole discretion, may apply any 

damages recovered to the cost of undertaking any corrective 

action on the Property. 

d. Costs of Enforcement.  In any case where a court 

finds that a violation has occurred, all reasonable costs 

incurred by Grantee in enforcing the terms of this Easement 

against Grantor, including, without limitation, costs and 

expenses of suit and reasonable attorney's fees, and any costs 

of restoration necessitated by Grantor's violation of the 

Easement shall be borne by the Grantor. 

8. Development Rights.  Grantor hereby grants to 

Grantee all development rights or credits that are now or 

hereafter allocated to, implied, reserved or inherent in the 

Property, and the parties agree that such rights are terminated 

and extinguished, and may not be used on or transferred to any 

portion of the Property as it now or hereafter may be bounded or 

described, or to any other property adjacent or otherwise, nor 

used for the purpose of calculating permissible lot yield on the 

Property or any other property. 

9. Owner and Grantor Warranties. 

a. Title.  Grantor warrants good and sufficient 

title to the Property, free from all encumbrances and hereby 

promises to defend the same against all claims that may be made 

against it.  Grantor warrants the Property to be free from all 

mortgages, liens, encumbrances, restrictions, easements, 

covenants and conditions, except those that the Grantee 

determines do not interfere with its proposed use of the 



 10 

Property. 

b. Hazardous Substances.  Grantor hereby promises to 

defend and indemnify Grantee against all litigation, claims, 

demands, penalties and damages, arising from or connected with 

any release of hazardous waste or violation of federal, state or 

local environmental laws. 

10. Amendment of Easement.  This Easement may be 

amended only with the written consent of Grantee and Grantor 

and, if necessary, the written consent of the State of New 

Jersey Green Acres Program.  Any such amendment shall be 

consistent with the purposes of this Easement and with the laws 

of the State of New Jersey and any regulations promulgated 

pursuant to those laws. 

  11. Interpretation.  This Easement shall be 

interpreted under the laws of the State of New Jersey, resolving 

any ambiguities and questions of the validity of specific 

provisions so as to give maximum effect to its outdoor 

recreation and/or conservation purposes. 

12. Perpetual Duration.  This Easement shall be a 

servitude running with the land in perpetuity.  Every provision 

of this Easement that applies to the Grantor or Grantee shall 

also apply to their respective agents, heirs, executors, 

administrators, assigns, and all other successors as their 

interests may appear. 

13. Notices.  Any notices required by this Easement 

shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered or sent by 

first class mail, to Grantor and Grantee at the addresses shown 

in the first paragraph of this Deed Of Easement. 



 11 

14. Throughout this Deed, the singular shall include 

the plural, and the masculine shall include the feminine unless 

the text indicates otherwise. 

15.  Right of First Refusal.  Grantor hereby gives the 

Grantee a Right Of First Refusal ("Right") to purchase a fee 

simple interest in the Property. The conditions of this Right 

shall be such that whenever Grantor receives a written offer 

from a person or persons to purchase all or any part of the 

Property, and Grantor accepts the offer subject to this Right, 

Grantor shall notify the Board by certified mail of the offer.  

The Grantee may elect to purchase the Property at the offered 

price and upon such other terms and conditions not less 

favorable to the Grantor than those contained in the 

conditionally accepted offer.  Grantee shall have forty-five 

(45) days to elect to purchase the Property and will notify 

Grantor by certified mail of such election.    

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner, Grantor and Grantee 

have hereunder set their hand and seal on the day and year first 

written above. 

          
          GRANTOR 
Attest:         WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP 
 
 
________________________________  x_______________________ 
Name:         Name:  Sandy Henley 
Title         Title: Mayor 
 
Attest:        GRANTEE: BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY 
OF BURLINGTON 

 
 
_____________________________   x_______________________ 
Name:          
Title:         Commissioner Director 



 12 

COUNTY OF BURLINGTON) 
STATE OF NEW JERSEY) 
 

 I CERTIFY that on _____________, 2022___________________ 

personally came before me and this person acknowledged under 

oath, to my satisfaction, that; 

 (a) this person is the Mayor of the Township of Westampton, 

the Grantor named in this Deed Of Easement; 

 (b) this person who is the attesting witness to the signing 

of this Deed Of Easement by the Mayor is Wendy Gibson, the 

Acting Municipal Clerk; 

 (c) this Deed Of Easement was signed and delivered by the 

Township of Westampton as its voluntary act duly authorized; 

 (d) this person knows the proper seal of Township of 

Westampton which was affixed to this instrument; 

 (e) this person signed this proof to attest to the truth of 

these facts. 

 (f) the consideration to Grantor for this Deed Of Easement 

is $202,500.00. 

 

   ____________________________________ 
   Name of attesting witness: 
 
   Title: 
 

NOTARY        
 
Sworn and Subscribed to 
 
before me this      day 
 
of              , 2022. 
 
_______________________ 
 



 13 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY) 
ss 

COUNTY OF BURLINGTON) 
 

 I certify that on ____________, 2022,                    , 

personally came before me and acknowledged under oath, to my 

satisfaction, that: 

 (a) she is the Director, the proper corporate officer of the 

Corporation named in this Deed; 

 (b) Eve Cullinan, the County Administrator of the 

Corporation, is the attesting witness to the signing of the Deed 

Of Easement by __________________, the Director of the 

Corporation; 

 (c) this Deed Of Easement was signed by the Corporation as 

its voluntary act; 

 (d) the proper seal of the Corporation is affixed to this 

Deed; 

 (e) this proof is signed to attest to the truth of these 

facts; and, 

 (f) the full and actual consideration paid or to be paid for 

the transfer of this Deed is $202,500.00 (Such consideration is 

defined in N.J.S.A. 46:15-5.) 

 
         
        ________________________ 
        Eve Cullinan 
NOTARY       County Administrator 
 
Sworn and Subscribed to 

before me this ____ day 

of _____________, 2022. 

______________________ 



 14 

SCHEDULE "A" 
 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION 



 15 

 
SCHEDULE "B" 

 
SURVEY 



 16 

 
SCHEDULE "C-1" and "C-2" 

 
COMMISSIONER RESOLUTION 



 17 

 
SCHEDULE "D-1" and "D-2" 

 
TOWNSHIP ORDINANCE 



 18 

 
 
              
 
 
DEED OF EASEMENT    Dated: 
 
              
 

     | 
     | 

WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP,   |    
      | 
            | 
      | 
      | 
      | Record and return to: 
   Grantor,  | 
      | 
TO      | ASHLEY BUONO, ESQ. 
      | COUNTY SOLICITOR 
      | 49 Rancocas Road - Room 225 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  | Mt. Holly, NJ 08060 
OF THE COUNTY OF BURLINBGTON | 
      | 
      | 
   Grantee,  | 
      | 
      



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

APPROVING PAYMENT OF VOUCHERS 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 3/15/2022 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 49-22 

 
 WHEREAS, the Township is in receipt of various vouchers submitted by vendors and/or 
other claimants for goods rendered and/or services provided to the Township; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer has certified that there exists a line-item 
appropriation against which each claim shall be charged and that there are sufficient funds 
available for the payment of each voucher; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each voucher contains a certification of a department head, or duly 
designated representative having personal knowledge of the facts that the goods have been 
provided or services rendered to the Township and that the goods or services are consistent with 
prior authorizations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a list of all conforming claims which have been approved by the Chief 
Financial Officer has been prepared and reviewed by the Township Committee and is appended 
hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
 NOW BE IT RESOLVED that the Committee for the Township of Westampton for the 
reasons set forth above hereby approves the payment of the vouchers set forth on the attached 
Exhibit A and this Resolution shall be recorded as part of the minutes of this meeting and shall 
upon approval be open to the public. 
 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, 
Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on March 15, 2022. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

DeSilva       
Mayor Henley       

Mungo       
 
 





































TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 2021 MUNICIPAL BUDGET 
TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

 
RESOLUTION 50-22 

 

 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-8, as amended by L. 2015, C. 95, & 14, 2015 provides that 

the Municipal Budget may be read by title only at the time of the Public Hearing if a resolution is 

passed by not less than a majority of the full Governing Body, providing that at least one week 

prior to the date of the hearing, a complete copy of the Municipal Budget has been made available 

for public inspection, and has been made available to each person upon request; and, 

 WHEREAS, these conditions as it pertains to the 2022 Municipal Budget have been met. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Westampton Township Committee 

at its regular meeting held on March 15, 2021 at 7:00PM, that the Westampton Township 

Municipal Budget shall be read by title only. 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting held 

in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New Jersey 

08060 on March 15, 2022. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 

________________________________ 

Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

DeSilva       
Mayor Henley       

Mungo       
 

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE LOCAL EXAMINATION  
OF THE 2021 MUNICIPAL BUDGET 

 
RESOLUTION 51-22 

 
 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-78b has authorized the Local Finance Board to adopt 
rules that permit municipalities in sound fiscal condition to assume the responsibility, normally 
granted to the Director of the Division of Local Government Services, of conducting the annual 
budget examination; and 
 WHEREAS, N.J.A.C. 5:30-7 was adopted by the Local Finance Board on February 11, 
1997; and 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:30-7.2 thru 7.5 the Township of Westampton, 
County of Burlington, State of New Jersey has been declared eligible to participate in the 
program by the Division of Local Government Services, and the Chief Financial Officer has 
determined that the Township meets the necessary conditions to participate in the program for 
the 2022 budget year, so now therefore 
 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Westampton Township Committee that in accordance with 
N.J.A.C. 5:30-7.6a &b and based upon the Chief Financial Officer’s certification, the governing 
body has found the budget has met the following requirements: 
1.  That with reference to the following items, the amounts have been calculated pursuant to law 

and appropriated as such in the budget: 
a.  Payment of interest and debt redemption charges 
b.  Deferred charges and statutory expenditures 
c.  Cash deficit of preceding year 
d.  Reserve of uncollected taxes 
e.  Other reserves and non-disbursement items 
f.  Any inclusions of amounts required for school purposes 

2. That the provisions relating to limitation on increases of appropriations pursuant to N.J.S.A. 
40A:4-45.2 and appropriations for exceptions to limits on appropriations found at 40A:4-45.3 
et seq. are fully met (Complies with the "CAP" law.) 

3.  That the budget is in such form, arrangement, and content as required by the Local Budget 
Law and N.J.A.C. 5:30-4 and 5:30-5. 

4.  That pursuant to the Local Budget Law: 
a.  All estimates of revenue are reasonable, accurate, and correctly stated,  
b.  Items of appropriation are properly set forth, 
c.   In itemization, form, arrangement, and content the budget will permit the exercise    

of the comptroller function within the municipality. 
5.  The budget and associated amendments have been introduced, publicly advertised, and in 

accordance with the relevant provisions of the Local Budget Law, except that failure to meet 
the deadlines of N.J.S.A. 40A:4-5 shall not prevent such certification. 

6.  That all other applicable statutory requirements have been fulfilled. 
 
 
 



 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the 
Director of the Division of Local Government Services. 
 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, 
Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on March 15, 2022. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  
 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

DeSilva       
Mayor Henley       

Mungo       
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP 
BURLINGTON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY 

 
 

CERTIFICATION OF APPROVED BUDGET 
 
 
 

 It is hereby certified that the Approved Budget complies with the requirements of law and 
approval is given pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-78(b) and N.J.A.C. 5:30-7. 
 
 It is further certified that the municipality has met the eligibility requirements of N.J.A.C. 
5:30-7.4 and 7.5, and that I, as Chief Financial Officer, have completed the local examination in 
compliance with N.J.A.C. 5:30-7.6. 
 
 
 
Dated: _______________  By:____________________________ 
      Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This certification form and resolution of the governing body executing such certification should 
be annexed to the adopted budget (N.J.A.C. 5:30-7.6(e)) 
 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION TO INTRODUCE THE 2022 MUNICIPAL BUDGET 
 

RESOLUTION 52-22 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the following statement of revenues and appropriations shall 

constitute the Local Municipal Budget for the year 2022; 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the said budget be published in the Burlington 

County Times edition of March 21, 2022 as follows: 

 

A hearing on the budget and tax resolution will be held at the via conference call meeting 

or at the Municipal Building on the 19th day of April 2022 at 7:00 o’clock p.m., at which time and 

place objections to said budget and tax resolution of the Township of Westampton for the year 

2022 may be presented by taxpayers or other interested persons. 

 
 
 Summary of General Section of Budget 
 Current Fund 
  
 Municipal Purposes within “CAPS” $11,208,804.28 
   
 Municipal Purposes excluded from “CAPS” 96,000.00 
 
 Reserve for Uncollected Taxes  485,325.11 
 
 Total General Appropriations  12,525,129.39 
 
 Less: Anticipated Revenues  1,826,193.56 
 
 Local Tax for Municipal Purposes  
 Amount to be Raised by Taxation   $4,386,137.00 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 



I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting held 

in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New Jersey 

08060 on March 15, 2022. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

DeSilva       
Mayor Henley       

Mungo       
 
 

 
 
 

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING PROMOTIONAL CRITERIA  
FOR SERGEANT FOR 

THE WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 53-22 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Township Committee needs to update their promotional policy for 
Sergeant that includes subjective and objective criteria; 
 
 NOW, THEREFOR, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township Committee of the Township 
of Westampton sets forth the following promotional criteria to be followed by the Westampton 
Township Police Department. 

 
ELIGIBILITY 

 
1. All officers employed a minimum of three years as a police officer with the Westampton 

Township Police Department at the time of the posting are eligible to apply for the 
position of Sergeant. 

 
TESTING ELEMENTS 

 
All Promotional examinations for positions within the Westampton Township Police Department 
shall be based upon a competitive examination given to all eligible and interested members of 
the Department. 
 

1. Oral examination by a review board consisting of the one or more command level staff of 
the Westampton Twp Police Department, three or more commanding or superior officers 
from other law enforcement agencies and the Westampton Twp Administrator. (25 
points) 

 
2. Recommendations/evaluations made by each candidate’s superior officer(s) within the 

last three years. Recommendations/evaluations made by Sergeants, Lieutenants, and 
Chief of Police. These recommendations shall be averaged. The 
recommendations/evaluations shall be completed on standard forms that fairly and 
objectively measure past and current performance and future capabilities for professional 
development. (25 points)  
 

3. Review of past service record including commendations and disciplinary findings. (25 
points) 
 



4. Evaluation of educational achievements and accomplishments. Preference shall be given 
for associates, bachelors, masters and professional degrees in ascending order. 
Consideration shall also be given to police training and education. (20 points) 
 

5. The most senior candidate shall be given an additional five points. In the event of equal 
seniority, the points shall be divided equally. (5 points) 

 
NOTICE OF RESULTS 

 
Each element of the evaluation process will be weighted in the manner set forth above so that the 
total weight of all portions of the evaluation constitutes 100 points. The applicants will be ranked 
upon completion of all elements of the evaluation process.  The results will be posted in writing 
to all candidates. The promotional list will be valid for a two-year period from the date of the list 
being established. The Chief of Police has the right to extend the promotional list for one more 
year after as long as it’s done by resolution no later than sixty days from the expiration of the 
two years. Any candidate who wishes to review his/her results may do so within five days of the 
distribution of the results. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall become effective immediately. 
 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, 
New Jersey 08060 on March 15, 2022. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
 
 

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
 
 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

DeSilva       
Mayor Henley       

Mungo       
 
 
 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

APPOINT POLICE LIEUTENANT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 54-22 
 

 WHEREAS, the Westampton Township Police Department has the need to promote a 

member of the department to the vacant position of Police Lieutenant; and 

 WHEREAS, the testing elements as prescribed in resolution 138-21 were completed on 

March 7, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, candidate Sergeant Ryan Bieri has successfully completed all elements of 

the evaluation process; and  

 WHEREAS, it is recommended by the Chief of Police to promote Sergeant Bieri to the 

vacated position of Police Lieutenant. 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Committee of the Township 

of Westampton, County of Burlington and State of New Jersey that Ryan Bieri, is hereby 

appointed to the position of Police Lieutenant for the Police Department in the Township of 

Westampton commencing March 14, 2022. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 

held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 

Jersey 08060 on March 15, 2022. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

DeSilva       
Mayor Henley       

Mungo       
 

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION REFUNDING  
TAXES OVERPAID DUE TO 

AN ADDED APPEAL 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 55-22 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Tax Collector has reviewed a request for refund by both the 

mortgage company and the homeowner of an overpayment of taxes paid due to an added 

assessment appeal; and  

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Township Committee approves the 

following amount to be refunded: 

 

Block 1502   Lot 36 

Amount:   $3,985.35 

Property Location:  907 Russo Drive 

Name:  Santos; Joshua & Montoya; Nichole 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 

Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey 

at their meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas 

Road, Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on March 15, 2022. Wendy Gibson, Acting 

Township Clerk.  

 
 

_________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

DeSilva       
Mayor Henley       

Mungo       
 


	03.15.2022
	Agenda Packet 03.15.2022
	Agenda Packet 03.15.2022
	Agenda Packet 03.15.2022
	Agenda Packet 03.15.2022
	Agenda Packet 03.15.2022
	03.15.2022 Closed Session
	10.5.210 Packet
	10.5.210 Packet
	10.5.210 Packet
	10.5.210 Packet.pdf
	10.5.210 Packet
	Closed Session Resolution






	03.01.2022 Reg mins
	Workshop 03.01.2022
	Closed Session 03.01.2022
	Police Department Monthly Report Feb 2022


	Agenda Packet 03.15.2022
	Agenda Packet 03.15.2022
	Public Works March 2022 Report
	2-2022 COLA Ordinance - Prepared by Auditor 03.15.2022
	3-22 Bond Ordinance - 2022 Capital Improvements
	4-22 Ordinance Transferring Easement Sharpless 03.15.22


	Agenda Packet 03.15.2022
	Agenda Packet 03.15.2022
	49-22 Payment of Vouchers 3.15.22
	BILL LIST-MARCH 15 2022

	ADPFD55.tmp
	Sworn and Subscribed to


	50-22 Resolution Budget by Title03.15.2022
	Agenda Packet 03.15.2022
	Agenda Packet 03.15.2022
	51-22 Resolution Local Exam 03.15.2022


	Agenda Packet 03.15.2022
	52-22 Resolution Budget Intro 03.15.2022
	RESOLUTION TO INTRODUCE THE 2022 MUNICIPAL BUDGET
	Reserve for Uncollected Taxes  485,325.11
	Total General Appropriations  12,525,129.39


	Agenda Packet 03.15.2022
	Agenda Packet 03.15.2022
	53-22 Resolution for Sergeant Promotions 03.15.22
	54-22 Appoint Police Lieutenant Bieri 03.15.22




	55-22 Resolution Refunding Overpayment 03.15.22




